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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
Background information

The institution was established under the TVET Act on 2013. The entity is domiciled in Kenya.
The institute is under the Ministry of Education.
Principal Activities

The principal activity of the college is to offer vocational education and training at diploma level
as per the TVET Act 2013.

Its mission and vision statements are:

To be centre of excellence in technology and innovation and

To train and nurture human capital for a dynamic economy respectively.

Key Management

The college’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
- Board of Governors;
- Accounting officer/ Principal
- Management team

Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30" June 2020
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Designation Name
1. Principal -Mr. Moses Kiprono Sabulei
2 Deputy Principal -Mr Coory Kipkemboi
3 Registrar -Mr Philip Tum
4. HOD Engineering -Mr. David Kosgei
|4 | HOD Business -Mrs. Mary Mueni Kivuva |
| 6. | Finance Officer -Mr. Augustine Kipkoech
| 7 | Head of Procurement -Mr. Betwel K. Seroney
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(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Ziwa Technical Training Institute Board has two basic fiduciary duties which it owes to the
government of Kenya:

a. Duty of care
b. Duty of loyalty

The Board members must therefore act in good faith with the care of a prudent person, and in the best
interest of the college.

They should refrain from self-dealing, usurping college opportunities and receiving improper personal
benefits.

They should make decision on an informed basis, in good faith and in the honest belief that the action
is taken in the best interest of the college.

Generally, all officers owe the same fiduciary duties as the Board and therefore the officers owe the
duty to keep the Board informed, the officers with greater knowledge are subject to higher standards
of scrutiny and liability.

The Board has therefore constituted an audit committee which consist of three members who are not
part of the college management. Its basic responsibility is to provide oversight of the financial
reporting process, the audit process, the college system of internal controls and compliance with laws
and regulations

The audit committee is also expected to review significant accounting and reporting issues and recent
professional and regulatory pronouncements to understand the potential impact on financial
statements.

The committee reviews the results of an andit with the management and external auditors.
It is also responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of the auditor.
The internal auditor reports directly to the committee,

The audit committee meets separately with the external auditors to discuss matters that the committee
or the auditors believe should be discussed privately. This committee also reviews proposed audit
approaches and handle coordination of the audit effort with internal audit staff The committee
approves the audit plan, reviews staffing and organization of the function, and meet with internal
auditors and the management on a periodic basis to discuss matters of concern that may arise.

Audit committee have authority over its own budget.
While Board should seek members who can provide a diverse range of competent perspective based
on their experience and expertise, it is nevertheless imperative that the audit committee members are

knowledgeable and conversant in the language of finance and accounting.

Other oversight activities include project management where by the public works office is appointed
as the project manager. The project manager advises the Board on the progress of the project.

i
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Headguarters
Ziwa Technical Training Institute
P.O. Box 1055-30100
ELDORET, KENYA

(g) Contacts

Telephone: (+254) 705981111
(+254)735981111

E-mail: ziwatti@gmail com

Website: www.ziwatti.ac.ke

(h) Bankers
1. Co-operative Bank of Kenya
P.O. Box 2948,
Eldoret, Kenya.

il. Kenya Commercial Bank
P.0. Box 6788-30100,
Eldoret, Kenya.

(i) Independent Auditors

Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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2. THE BOARDOF GOVERNORS

MR. FRANCIS
Z.K. MENJO
(BOARD
CHAIRMAN)

Mr Francis Z.K. Menjo was born on 18" January 1952
in Nandi county, Kenya. He has worked in the public
and private sector for over 30 years. On Sept 1976 he
served as a classroom teacher at Nakuru High School,
1982-1984 he was appointed as deputy headmaster at
Makuru High School, 1984-1986 he was promoted to be
the head teacher, 1986(Jan to Oct)1986 he became
senior headmaster at Technical High School-Nairobi.
He became principal in the following institutions:
RVTTI Eldoret-(1986-1988) Laikipia Diploma Teacher
College-(1988-1990), Baringo Teachers College (Jan —
June 1991). In 1991 he was promoted to senior principal
and served the following instifution in that position:
RVIST (1991-1997). He later on worked in the
following private sector after retiring, Dairy Chrest as a
technical manager. He was later on appointed Deputy
Secretary (Admin) Ministry of Education,

2. Mr. Michael
Rugut (County
TVET Director)

Mr. Michael Rugut was born on 10" June 1967. He is a
career civil servant currently serving as the Uasin-
Gishu/Nandi/Elgeyo Marakwet County Director of
TVET and represents the Principal Secretary State
Department of Vocational and Technical Training in the
Governing council having worked previously at the
Head Office, Ministry of Education, Science and
Technology. He also worked for National Y outh
Service as a lecturer in the Department of Technology.
He has a degree in Production Technology from Moi
University. He attained a certificate in Automotive
Engineering and Construction Plant Engineering and
Construction Plant Engineering from the Polytechnic
University of Japan. Mr. Rugut holds a Master’s Degree
in Administration (Project Management ) from Kenyatta
University.

)

MR. Moses K
Sabulei

Mr Moses Kiprono Sabulei was born on 21 May 1965
in Nandi county.

He has the following qualifications:

He is a holder of Bachelor of Education from Moi
University Eldoret, Master of Education (curriculum)
from Moi university Eldoret. He is currently pursuing
PhD in Curriculum and Teaching at University of
Eastern Africa Baraton. He has also attended many
international conferences in leadership and
management.

He is currently the college executive Board member,
Mr Moses K Sabulei has experience in management of
education

Institutions.

He has worked in the following institutions:

1993-1997- Teacher in High School
1998-2002-Administrative officer —TSC —HQs Nairobi
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2002-2006- Lecturer Kabete Technical- Nairobi
2006-2009- Dean of students Ol’lessos Technical
Training Institute

2009-2014-  Principal —Kisiwa Technical Training
Institute

2015-2017-  Principal- Baringo Technical Training
Institute

2017 to date- Principal Ziwa Technical Training
Institute

4.

Mrs, Lilian M
Khaemba

Lilian M Khaemba was born in the year 1966. She sat
her CPE examination in the year 1978 at Kaimosi DEM.
She sat for her KCE examination in the year 1982 at
Limuru Girls’ School attaining division [ grade. She
later on in the year 1984 sat for Kenya Advanced
Certificate of Education at Limuru Girls® School. She
joined University of Nairobi studying Bachelor of
Science (Food Science and Technology) whereby she
was awarded degree (second class honours upper
division) in the year 1989. She was later on (2008)
awarded Masters of Business Administration
(Executive) degree at Moi University. Lilian has
worked in the following companies:

Kenya Association of Manufacturers local chapter,
As:

2001-2004 as Quality Assurance Manager

2004-2005 as Customer Service Manager

2005-2012 as Plant Manager

Fraca Servcom Ltd

2013-2020 as Operations manager

3

Mrs. Rebecca Metto
Koskei

Mrs. Rebecca Kosgei is a graduate of Moi University
with a bachelor of Arts in Social Studies (sociology).
She has worked in the following institutions: Anglican
Development Services as a project officer from 2015-
2017, Board member of CDF from April 2008-2012,
and RCEA Women League Co-ordinator from 2003-
2012

vi
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6. Mrs Hadija
Mohammed [ssa

Mrs. Hadija Mohamed Issa is a graduate of Moi
university with bachelor of Education (Arts). She has
worked in the following institutions; Ummahat
Integrated School as principal- January 2012 to date,
Gulf Africa Bank as (teller) from 2010-2011, Abrar
High School May-August 2009.

7. Eng. Ogola
Walter Obonyo

Eng. Walter Obonyo Ogola was born on 22™ June 1980
in Uasin-Gishu County Kenya.

Eng. Ogola holds a Bachelor of Science in Civil
Engineering and is currently pursuing MSc Engineering
(Water Resource Engineering) at the University of
Nairobi. He is a Director and Partner in Girder
Associates consulting Engineers. He has versed
experience having worked in Kenya, South Sudan,
Rwanda, Botswana and Tanzania.

He has delivered the following projects among many:
1. Detailed design and construction of Queen
Esther Generation Resort a 150 rooms

hospitality facility for RCCG Living Church.

2. Detailed design for proposed Accommodation,
offices and Guest House for WFP-Somalia in
Garowe, Puntland Estate of Somalia

3. Design and supervision of a five-star Dolphin
Beach Hotel in Shanzu Mombasa,

4. Detailed design and construction of Milai
Hotels in Bondo.

5. Preparation of integrated Sanitation
Management Master Plan for Nairobi and
Selected Satellite Towns. etc.

8. Mr Kebenel
Kipkorir William

Mr. Kebenei Kipkorir William holds a Bachelor of
Science in Networks and Communication Systems and
is currently pursuing MBA-IT in New Charter
University. The following are his accomplishments:
Designed and implemented Brand Book for Brand
strategy in South Africa, Designed and setup IBM Data
Centre Network security in Nairobi; Designed and
installed Network on Extreme Switches in the
University of Eastern Africa Baraton; and performed
information security training for Baraton clients.

vii
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9. Rael Jeruto
Mandago

Mrs. Rael Jeruto Mandago was bomn in the year 1978
She did her primary school course at Toloita Primary
School in the year 1994,

She later on joined Moi Girls High school Eldoret
whereby she completed her secondary school course in
the year 1998 scoring a mean grade of B-.

She joined Alphax College whereby she pursued Higher
diploma in Human Resource.

Rael Jeruto Mandago graduated with Bachelor of
Education(Arts) from University of Nairobi on 11"
March 2005,

She pursued Master of Science (Human Resource
Management) at Jomo Kenyatta University of
Agriculture from January 2014-December 2016.

Mrs. Rael Mandago has worked at Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculture and University of Eldoret as a
part time lecturer (2015 Jan to date)

She worked as Human Resource and Administrator
Manager at Metro Logistics Limited (November 2013-
Dec 2014

She also worked as Human Resource Officer at
Safaricom Ltd from the 2008 to Dec 2012,

viil
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

1. Mr. Moses K Sabulei
Chief Principal

2. Mr. Coory Kipkemboi

-College accounting officer.
-Recruitment of college staff
-Secretary to the Board of
ZOVErnors.

-Overseeing daily operations of
the institution

-Implementation of BOG
policies

-Deputises the principal
-Trains students

-Supervises training in the
college

-Supervises the non-teaching
staff work

3. Mr Philip Kipkorir Tum

3.Mrs, Mary Kivuva
Mueni
HOD Business department

Mr. David Kosgei
HOD Engineering
department

- Ag Registrar

- Train applied science
students

- Incharge of admissions

- Incharge of marketing
of institutes’ courses.

- Incharge of external
examinations

-Head the business department
-Train business students
-Supervising teaching in the
department

-Advising the principal on
staffing of the department

-Teaching in trade area
-Head the Engineering
department

-Enrol student in the
engineering department
-Supervising teaching in the
department

-Advising the principal on
staffing of the department

ix
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4 Mr. Augustine Kipkoech
Finance Officer

-Preparation of books of
accounts.

-Budgeting

-Preparation of payroll and
processing of employee’s
salary.

-Preparation of supplier’s
payments and reconciliation of
their balances.

2. Mr. Betwel Seroney
Procurement Officer

-Receiving and keeping records
of all incoming and outgoing
goods from the central stores;
-Maintains ledgers
professionally, for permanent
expendable and consumables
-Issuing of goods to persons and

departments
-Stock taking.
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4. CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Welcome to the 2" edition of our integrated financial reports.

In this year Ziwa technical training institute has seen a great deal of progress though with some challenges.
It is in this year that the college has completed construction of most of the projects it started previously.
The main projects that have been completed are the following:

(1) Renovation and completion of the Mechanical and Automotive Workshop. (9.060,580.00)

(ii) Renovation works (Male and Female Hostels), Partitioning, Toilets, Fencin g and Associated civil works.
(9,063,680.00

(1i1) Construction of library tuition and class rooms (Kshs. 17,721,980.00)

The college managed to honour its obligation in repayment of the asset financing by the NIC bank.

The student population increased this year from 1,752 last year to 2048 this year. There was also an increase
in frainer’s population of whom most of them were employed by the Board.

Like last year the College Board consists of 10 Board members of whom one member is an executive
member while the rest are non-executive members. The board has been organised into three committees
namely:

i Audit and Risk committee

ii. Finance and development committee

iii. Education and Human Resource committee
The above committees have been working tirelessly with the full board all throughout this year.

Despite the above progress the college has faced some challenges which emanates from the increased
population and shortage of resources to carry out the college’s requirements.

Shortage of clean water in the college has been a challenge especially during dry seasons. This has forced
the college to hire tractors and water tanks to supply water to the college which has proved to be very
expensive and its safety to the users not guaranteed. In search of a better solution to this problem the board
has been in consultation with the county government of Uasin-Gishu to drill a bore hole in the college
compound.

Fees collection has been another challenge that the college is facing. In the year 2019-2020 the college
failed to collect fees as per its expectation partly due to COVID-19 pandemic and partly due to other factors,

The college could not continue with its normai training because of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
and inadequate of open and distance learning infrastructure. The board therefore decided to acquire an e-
learning platform to ease on this problem.

Generally, the college is in good position to train the students.

Mr. ELKANAN K LAGATT,

BOARD CHAIRMAN

X1
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S. REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL
Welcome to the 2™ edition of our integrated financial reports,

In this year Ziwa technical training institute has seen a great deal of progress though with some challenges.
It is in this year that the college has completed construction of most of the projects it started previously.
The main projects that have been completed are the following:

(1) Renovation and completion of the Mechanical and Automotive Workshop. (9,060,580.00)

(ii) Renovation works (Male and Female Hostels), Partitioning, Toilets. Fencing and Associated civil works.
(9,063,680.00

(i1} Construction of library tuition and class rooms (Kshs. 17,721,980.00)

The college managed to honour its obligation in repayment of the asset financing by the NIC bank.

The student population increased this year from 1,752 last year to 2048 this year. There was also an increase
in trainer’s population of whom most of them were employed by the Board.

Like last year the College Board consists of 10 Board members-of whom one member is an execufive
member while the rest are non-executive members. The board has been organised into three committees
namely:

i Audit and Risk committee

ii. Finance and development committee

ii1. Education and Human Resource committee
The above committees have been working tirelessly with the full board all throughout this year.

Despite the above progress- the college has faced some challenges which emanates from the increased
population and shortage of resources to carry out the college’s requirements.

Shortage of clean water in the college has been a challenge especially during dry seasons. This has forced
the college to hire tractors and water tanks to supply water to the college which has proved to be very
expensive and its safety to the users not guaranteed. In search of a betier solution to this problem the board
has been in consultation with the county government of Uasin-Gishu to drill a bore hole in the college
compound.

Fees collection has been another challenge that the college is facing. In the year 2019-2020 the college
failed to collect fees as per its expectation partly due to COVID-19 pandemic and partly due to other factors.

The college could not continue with its normal training because of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
and inadequate of open and distance learning infrastructure. The board therefore decided to acquire an e-
learning platform to ease on this problem.

HEoGGa ijﬁfﬁm n the students.

Generally, the college is-irrgi o5y
':l__""—- TiwA TECHNICE
S ¢ A 4 5 AUG 2011

MR. Daniel Nyariki On Lroki
PRINCIPAL/SECRETA

1@ Mt oem Ao 0
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6. REVIEW OF ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITITE PERFOMANCE FOR FY
201972020

Section 81 Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the Accounting officer
to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity’s performance against
predetermined objectives.

Ziwa Technical Training Institute has four strategic pillars and 6 objectives within its Strategic Plan for
the FY. These strategic pillars are as follows:

To promote high standards in training and learning

To have adequate physical infrastructure and facilities to train and learn

To institutionalise good governance practices at the institute

To have adequate and competent staff

B

Ziwa Technical Training Institute develops its annual work plans based on the above four pillars.
Assessment of the Board’s performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. Ziwa
Technical Training Institute achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2019/2020 period for its four
strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

X1il
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Strategic Pillar Objective Key Performance Activities Achievements
Indicators
1. To promote 1, To initiate I List of new 1. Practical oriented 1. Four additional programmes
high market-driven programmes training and mounted
standards in and relevant mounted learning ii. Blended online / in person
training and training ii. Available 1i. Mounting of new learning and training
learning. programmes internal programmes il Reports of assessment and
il. To develop an quality iil, Signing of evaluation availed
internal quality assurance memorandum of iv. Four renovated class rooms.
assurance systems understanding
system iil. Available and contracts
iii.  To develop memorandum . Use of new
partnerships of technologies in
and exchange understanding training and
programmes and contracts learning
v, No of
equipment
and facilities
acquired
2. To have 1. To acquire physical -No of equipment and 1. procurement process for i. Workshops and laboratories
adequate infrastructure and facilities acquired new equipment and equipped
physical facilities -Funds approved infrastructure il Two hostels build
infrastructure -Purchase of the required | ii. Budgetary/ procurement iii. Electrical and mechanical
and facilities equipment! process put in place. engineering workshops equipped
to train and -New technologies iv.  Construction of
learn installed and used facilities and
infrastructure

Xiv







ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2020

Strategic Pillar Objective Key performance indicators Activities Achievements
3. To institutionalise good l. Teo |4 Revised strategic plan i Revision of the 1. Strategic  plan
governance practices at revise strategic plan revised
the institution. strateg | ii. New board structure i, Capacity
ic plan | 1. Mew administrative and organization building for the il. new board
2. To | structures BOG members capacity built
develo | iv. No of staff and students sensitized iii. Sensitize staff 1il. staff and
p|v. Number of conferences and students students
admini | vi. No of exhibitions iv. Hold sensitized
strativ | vii,  No of tusks accomplished conference iv. two conferences
eand | viii. Updated web page V. Hold held
organi | ix. Increased number of collaborations exhibitions V. no exhibitions
zation | X. No of signed contracts vi. Driving school held due to
structu | xi. No of meetings established in COVID-19
res | xil, No of funding opportunities Partnership situation
xiii, No of donors with Berur vi. no of meetings
xiv.  Available staff development policy Driving school held
xv.  Recruitment in an open and vii.  Hold meetings vii.  NG-CDG,
transparent manner viii.  Sensitize county
xvii,  Advertised and recruit for position students on bursaries, and
xviii. Conduct need assessment and alternative other bursaries
training sources of schemes secure,
tuition funding,
4, To  have  adequate | To develop | i Available staff development policy 1. Draft a staff i, Availability of
competent staff. staff ii. Recruitment in an open and recruitment staff  hirering
development | transparent manner policy and tool and
policy i, Advertised and recruit for position appraisal tool development
Recruit iv. Conduct need assessment and il. Recruit policy
competent training according to il Advertisement
staff establishment and recruitment
adhering  to for different
openness and positions
transparency

v
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Ziwa TTI strategic pillars as espoused in its strategic plan (2018-2021) and as is captured in the performance contracting document for the
financial year 2019-2020 under strategic objectives clearly builds a nexus between the strategic pillars and ziwa TTI’s co- mandate and its
other cross cutting issues in attainment of the strategic objective of ziwa TTI’s.

X1
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ziwa Technical Training Institute Board of Governors recognizes its accountability to the

Government and to the public at large and therefore it values honesty, openness and inter-governance. It
ensures that the college is governed according to the relevant laws and regulations.

The Board consist of one (1) executive member while the rest nine (9) are non-executive members.
Members of the Board are drawn from different professional fields hence bringing into board different
skills and experience.

The Principal caries out day to day activities of the college on behave of the board, however, the Board
retain its accountability to the government to ensure that the college is managed diligently.

Board Meetings

There are at least three meetings in a year as per the TVET Act 2013. The Chairperson presides over
every meeting at which he is present, but in the absence of the Chairperson the members present may
elect one from among their number to preside.

The quorum for the Board meeting is seven members which include five appointed members.
Sub-committee meetings are held from time to time depending on agency of the matters at hand.

Committees of the Board

Ziwa Technical Training Institute board has three standing commuittees namely:

i Education committee
ii. Finance committee
iii.  Development committee

Education committee

Education committee consist of three members. Its responsibilities are:
i. Overseeing the conduct of education and training in the institution in accordance with the
provisions of TVET Act 2013.
ii. Promoting and maintaining standards, quality and relevance in education and training in the
institution in accordance to TVET Act 2013.
iii. Developing and reviewing programs for training and to make representations thereon to the Board.
iv. Regulating the admission and exclusion of students from the institution, subject to a qualifications
framework and provision of TVET Act 2013.
v. Approving collaboration or association with other institutions and industries in and outside Kenya.
vi. Recruiting and appointing trainers from among qualified professionals and practising trades
persons in relevant sectors of industry
vii, Making regulations governing organization, conduct and discipline of the staff and students.

Finance committee

Finance committee ensures that there is proper management of college finances as per the PFM Act 2013,
It also does the following functions as per the TVET Act 2013.

i. Prepare annual estimates of revenue and expenditure for the institution and incurring expenditure
on behave of the college.

xvii
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ii. Determine fees payable and prescribe condition under which fees may be remitted in part or in
whole in accordance with the guidelines developed under the provisions of TVET Act 2013.

viii. Development committee

This committee consist of three members. Its responsibilities are as follows:
i. It ensures that the college has kept proper records of its fixed assets and
maintains them properly.

1. Admimistering and managing the property of the institution,

ni.  Develops and implement the institutions strategic plan.

iv.  Determining suitable terms and conditions of service for support staff, trainers
and instructors and remunerating the staff of the institutions, in consideration of
applicable laws.

v. It carries out analysis of the college assets and ensures that the college directs
funds to the suitable projects.

vi. It ensures that the college has followed procurement laws in acquisition and
development of college assets.

vii. It ensures that the budget allocations to development projects are reasonable
and the budget is strictly executed in every particular year.
Board’s accountability

Despite delegation of its duties to different committees, the Board is fully aware of its accountability to
the government of Kenya.

Resignation of appointment, Revocation of appointment, and vacation of office.

Ziwa Technical Training Institute applies provisions of Second schedule of TVET Act 2013 when dealing
with resignation of appointment, revocation of appointment and vacation of office by Board members.

Boards succession planning

Ziwa Technical Training Institute has taken a holistic board succession planning approach whereby the
Nomination committee, after considering the strategic direction of the college, plays a critical role

in analysing the needs of every board. The Board’s tenure is three years and the existing members can be
re-nominated for another one term except the chairman. The college has kept a bank of curriculum vitas
for those who have been identified as potential and therefore in case of any vacancy it will be easily
replaced.

Conflict of interest

Ziwa Technical Training Institute applies provisions of the Second schedule of TVET Act as far as
conflicts of interests are concerned.
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Ziwa Technical Training Institute managed to admit a total of 200 students who qualified for
various courses as per the requirements of KNQA framework which is higher than what we
managed to admit in last year. This was as a result of aggressive marketing carried out throughout
the year which involved moving from market to another market advertising TVET courses offered
by the college.

Training of students have been smooth in this year though with some few challenges faced in
availing training resources and facilities and disruption by COVID-19 pandemic which forced the
college to be closed at some periods in the year. The college offered 43 TVETA approved courses of
which 33 are set courses. There were a total of 150 female students in SET.

The college received a total of eleven classrooms that were vacated by Ziwa Secondary School. This
relived the college from the previously biting shortage of training facilities.

The college through funding by CDF managed to renovate a total of five vacated class rooms and
through internally generated resources renovated other 5 vacated classrooms bringing total number
of class rooms in the college to 17.

By the end of this year the college had a total of 80 employees 57 being trainers employed by Public
Service Commission, 30 being trainers employed by the Board and 23 being non-teaching staff
employed by the Board. These staffs were trained through capacity building organised by KATTI
the Treasury and other organizations.

In this year the college organised several academic trips to the students to various relevant
organizations. This motivated the students and staff.

The college attended 3 games and sporting activities where the college performed exemplary. The
games included the following games and sports;

L. Foot ball
L. Athletics
1il. Valley ball
iv. Hand ball

V. Net ball etc.
The college did not participate in TVET fairs this year due to interruption by COVID-19 pandemic.

The college invested in fight against COVID-19 pandemic by purchasing equipment such as spray guns,
thermometers, sanitizer dispensers, sanitizer and water tank etc.

As a way of paying back to the community the college distributed 30 water tanks to the nearby markets
and schools.

In this year the college incurred less in electricity bills, soap and other consumables (such as food staff)
because of lockdowns caused by COVID-19 pandemic.

Financially the college faced challenges in fees collection which was caused majorly by onset of COVID-
19 pandemic. We managed to collect a total of Kenya Shilling as school fees. We received capitation
grants for the year of 30,957 884 Kenya Shillings this being distributed as follows;
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sin | QUARTER DATE AMOUNT
1 |17 18" October 2019 7335.000
7 [ 2™ 7% May 2019 7,845,000
3 | 3¢ 3 July 2020 7,590,000
4 4" 8% July 2020 2,545,000

TOTAL 22,770,000

The college managed to clear most of its pending bill in this year after recovering outstanding fees from
the National Youth Service. Qutstanding fees recovered from other students amounted to KShs
30,085,884

The college constructed a Hostel through students practical. The total cost for construction of this
structure was KShs 8,639,445 and it is now operational. The structure accommodates a total of 100
students

Due to challenges that has been faced in the past, the college decided to acquire a bus (New [SUZU KDA
141 P BUS) this bus will be beneficial to the college in that it will cut cost of transport by nearly half and
it will improve effectiveness of college transport department.

In order to generate income, the college decided to invest in two income generating units i.e. water
processing and farm, water processing machine was purchased at a cost of KShs 600,000
Water processing house was also renovated.

In the farm the college decided to grow a variety of crops and to keep dairy animals. Farm project has
proved to be very beneficial to the college since it has subsidised cost of purchasing milk and vegetables.

The college has been compliant to the following statutes and has contributed as per its provisions as
follows:

S/N | STATUTE YEAR AMOUNT

1 | NHIF 2019-2020 389100

2 | NSSF 2019-2020 738280

3 | PAYE 2019-2020 237473
TOTAL - 1364853

Other statutes, laws and regulations that the college has complied with are:
-Public Finance Management Act 2012

-Public Procurement and Disposal Act 2015

-CDAC

-TVET ACT

-KNQA

However, the college is facing some risk emanating from;
a. Cut back on development grants
b. Poor payment of fees by the students
B, Insufficient supply of clean water
d Low completion rate by trainers
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-3 Poverty levels in the prospective trainees back ground.
f. Limited alternative sources of funds
g Shortage of training infrastructure
h. COVID-19 pandemic
9. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/ SUSTAINABILITY

REPORTING

Ziwa Technical Training Institute exists to train and nurture human capital for a dynamic economy. This
1s our purpose; the driving force behind everything we do. It’s what guides us to deliver our strategies,
which are founded on four pillars. Promoting high standards in training and learning, having adequate
physical infrastructure to facilitate training and learning, institutionalising good governance practices at
the institute. Below is a brief highlight of our achievements in each pillar.

1. Environmental performance

1ii.

iv,

At Ziwa Technical Training Institute we promote activates that use energy
effectively and reduce CO* emissions we advance resources recycling, use methods
that minimise water wastage (especially during farm irrigation), enhance chemical
substance management e.g farm chemicals and also take biodiversity into
consideration throughout the life cycle of our products

We pay strict observance to environmental laws and ordinances and to
environmental practices agreed upon with partner organizations e.g. NEMA.

We pay strict observance to environmental education, awareness activities and
information disclosure.

We contributed to society by lending co-operation and support to the environmental
activates of local and central government and other related organizations.

Ziwa Technical Training Institute applies the provisions of National Environment
Policy 2013 in every matter concerning environment.

2. Employee welfare
Human Resource Policies and Procedures

3.1 Introduction

1 Our human resource policies and procedures are formal commitments to how we treat
employees. The following policies and procedures have been developed over time, taking
into account wherever possible of the views of employees.

2 Our aim is to provide a supportive working environment that helps employees feel valued
and rewards behaviour that helps us to develop as an organization and achieve our overall

objectives.

3. If'you feel that they can be improved, please discuss with the HR Team
These policies and procedures do not form part of any contract of employment and are subject
to change at the Boards discretion.

ITII's total reward framework

At ZTTI, we take care to promote an environment in which people feel appreciated and empowered.
We believe that people work best when they feel rewarded — not just by external factors such as
good pay, pensions and terms and conditions, but also by the internal factors that motivate them as

individuals.
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-+ For this reason, we have adopted a total reward framework in which we explicitly value the financial
and non-financial motivators.

The financial rewards include the following:
Base pay
The non-financial rewards include the following
Learning and development
Quality of work life

Employee assistance programme

We provide a confidential employee assistance programme which is available to all staff. The
provider of this service can help staff with a wide range of stressful issues such as bereavement, and
relationship, legal and financial problems.

Recruitment and Selection Policy

Our aim is to ensure that we appoint high quality employees and conform to the relevant laws and
regulations, well suited to the Institution and to the job concerned, always selecting on merit and in
ways which conform to the best practice in diversity and equal opportunities.

Established Posts

i Ziwa TTI Executive monitors, and from time to time agrees revisions, to the employee
establishment. All requests to fill vacancies must firstly be discussed with HR. If
recruitment is required it must be considered and approved by the Board, using a Proposal to
appoint template.

i1. Requests to the Principal to appoint staff must include a job description, person
specification and team structure diagram. The job description and person specification
will be available for candidates to see as part of the recruitment process. The person
specification provides the basis of the selection criteria and methods to be used.

1. The following principles for recruitment will apply:

* A proposal to appoint will need to be approved and signed by the Principal;

* All posts will be advertised for 10 days (occasionally we may decide to advertise
internally only, and if we do not recruit we will then advertise for 10 days.

« If the vacancy still exists options such as secondment, sandwich placement,
apprenticeships, will be considered, and if appropriate the necessary steps taken;

* If the vacancy still exists, advertise externally, using fixed term appointments where
appropriate, but with the ability to appoint permanently if required;
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Extension of Existing Fixed Term Contracis of Employment

16

17

18

Ziwa Technical Training Institute [ZTTI] Principal approval is required for the extension of
fixed term contracts where the cumulative contract period will exceed 12 months. This
arrangement does not apply to posts to be extended for periods of less than 12 months.

We have a standard practice of reviewing the possible need to extend a fixed term contract
two thirds through the contract period or three months before the end of the contract,
whichever is shorter.

The criteria for deciding whether to extend should take account of not only whether the work
needs to be done at the cost incurred by continued employment of the person concerned, but
also of wider organisational issues, such as resource becoming available through colleagues
returning from extended leave, or existing activities coming to an end.

Conversion of Fixed Term Coniracts info Open Ended Contracts

19

20

As with temporary promotions, we will normally only convert fixed term positions to
substantive positions without a further recruitment exercise if the individual has secured the
post through an open recruitment competition, has been in post for a minimum period,
normally 12 months, and if all of the following conditions apply:
* it is agreed that there is a continued need for the post;
* there are no returners to the Board with the appropriate skills who need redeploying to a
post at that grade;
= the temporary post holder has performed well (very good or above);
= there are no other individuals on a fixed term contract at the same level, who meet all of
the conditions above, and whose posts aren’t being made substantive.
By only converting fixed term posts to permanent positions when there has already been a
competitive process and where there are no other individuals in a similar position we are
ensuring no individuals are disadvantaged by the process.

Market place practices

At Ziwa TTI We promote fair competition whichever form it might be, the following are some of
the rules which guide activities of our officers to ensure that they don’t interfere with fair

competition.

Anti-competitive behavior prohibited by such rules includes:

a

Collusion — when companies secretly communicate or agree on how they will compete, or appear
to compete, in the marketplace. This can occur when two or more companies agree to: fix, control
or maintain prices; set the terms under which they will provide or obtain products or services; or

allocate clients or market segments.

Bid-rigging — when competitors artificially manipulate the bidding process so that the outcome is
pre-determined or free and fair competition is otherwise limited or hindered. Any agreement
between competitors involving a bid may be considered bid-rigging. Bid-rigging can take various
forms, including comparing bids prior to submission, agreeing to refrain from bidding; agreeing to
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withdraw a bid; knowingly submitting non-competitive bids; and agreeing to rig bids to create
sham competition.

Abuse of a dominant position or monopoly power -when a business that has market power to
affect prices or output unilaterally takes anti-competitive actions without sufficient business
justification.

Tying — when a company with market power forces customers to take products or services that
they do not want or need. This can occur when a company with market power requires a client to
purchase one product in order to get another product that the client wants.

Improper exclusive dealing — when a company with a requisite level of market power agrees with
others to do business/not do business with another party or parties or refuses to deal with another

party or parties.

Employees Responsibility

Ziwa TTI colleagues are required to comply with applicable Competition Act 2019 and other laws and
compete fairly and ethically for business. The following guidelines will ensure fair business conduct and
appropriate competition in Ziwa TTI business conduct.

Avoiding Collusion

Employees are not permitted to:

Share Ziwa TTI's competitively sensitive information with suppliers.

Share as an intermediary or conduit to share non-public competitively sensitive information
between or among competitors or groups of competitors, such as clients, insurers, re-insurers,
service providers or other third parties;

Allocate customers, lines of business or territories among competitors, such as insurers, reinsurers
or service providers; or

Ziwa TTT's and its employee can be held liable for an antitrust violation for disclosing competitively
sensitive information. Competitively sensitive information can include:

Current or future pricing or the terms of services offered to customers, including plans for price
changes or differential pricing;

Strategic plans or data on market share, distribution practices, costs or quantities of sales;

Business or competitive strategies; or

Information about prices, output, employees, costs or other confidential information.

Avoiding Bid-Rigging

When conducting or managing a bidding process on behalf of clients Ziwa TTI's employees are not
permitted to:
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Assist bidders or potential bidders in communicating with each other about their current prices,
competitive strategies or bid responses:;

Facilitate or encourage collusion or coordination among bidders/potential bidders or discourage
aggressive bidding;

Allocate or attempt to allocate particular business or opportunities to one particular bidder over
another or steer bidders/potential bidders clear of competing with one another;

Solicit or knowingly accept bids that are designed or intended to not win business:

Directly or indirectly knowingly accept from or request of any bidder false, fictitious, inflated or
artificial bids or any bid that does not accurately represent the bidder’s best offer;

Agree in advance to protect or assign business to a given company without the client’s prior
approval,

Provide any bidder/potential bidder (including the current provider of the product or service)
preferential treatment of any kind, unless previously approved by the client;

Provide a bidding company any information relating to another firm’s bid or pricing targets or
ranges, without client approval; or

Forgo reviewing bidding procedures with the client in advance of engaging in the bid.

Avoiding Tying, Exclusive Dealing or Predatory Pricing

Ziwa TTI’s employees are not permitted to:

Force customers to take products or services that do not pertain to or benefit their personal or
business interests;

Sell a packaged bundle of products without first making sure that Ziwa TTI’s management has
first reviewed the pricing and conditions associated with the offer;

Agree to conduct business exclusively with one party, such as an insurer, reinsurer, supplier or
client;

Agree with one party to exclusively conduct business with another party or not to conduct
business with another party; or

Refuse to conduct business with one party, unless that party is a risk to the firm for any reason,
including a business conflict of interest, antitrust, or other reason pertaining to IAG’s compliance
policies.

Participation in Trade Associations

Ziwa Techmcal Training institute employee who participates in a trade, industry or professional group,
should not use this group as a forum for reaching unlawful agreements or improperly exchanging
competitively sensitive information. When joining any external association applicable to IAG’s line of
business, IAG colleagues should:

Review the agenda of each organization meeting in advance and not attend if it appears that
inappropriate subjects will be discussed; and

If the discussion includes competitively sensitive subjects, like prices, costs, or terms offered to
clients, indicate that the subject is inappropriate and cease communication with the group.
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If required, IAG colleagues should remove themselves from the meeting or conversation and request that
their departure time be recorded in the organization’s meeting minutes. Colleagues are required to
immediately report the events of the meeting to TAG’s legal advisors.

Maintaining Accurate Records and Reporting

Any interactions Ziwa TTI's employee have with competitors or suppliers and any records created
relating to the interaction, such as e-mail messages, must be accurately recorded. If an employee becomes
aware of antitrust or competition-related inquiries from a government agency, they are required to contact
the management immediately. Further, if an employee becomes aware or suspects any violation of this
policy by another colleague, they are required to contact the management immediately,

Management Responsibilities

Ziwa TTI’s management is responsible for assessing the colleges risk related to the Competition Act and
antitrust laws and to develop appropriate mitigation procedures relative to the colleges’ level of risk,
which may include communications, controls, training, certifications, monitoring and/or documentation
requirements. Ziwa TTI's management is also responsible for determining, on a risk-based basis, which
categories of vendors and third party service providers present a risk of violating the Competition Act and
antitrust laws and the controls that should be put in place relative to that risk. In addition, they are
responsible for determining the circumstances in which it is appropriate to obtain the agreement of third
parties to comply with this policy. All employees are responsible for reporting any violations of this
policy to the principal.

Training and Auditing

All employees are required to undergo training required on this policy. Internal auditing to monitor
employee compliance with this policy will be annually and periodically performed, as required. Findings
of these audits will be reported to the principal. Failure to comply with this policy may result in
disciplinary action in accordance with local laws and/or internal Company procedures, up to and
including, termination of employment or contract for service

10. REPORT OF THEBOARD OF GOVERNORS

The Board members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2020 which show the state of the entity’s affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the college is to offer vocational education and training at diploma level as
per the TVET Act 2013.
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Results
The results of the entity for the year ended June 30 2020 are set out on page 1 to 8
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page v-vii

Xxvil






ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2020

Aunditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Ziwa Technical Training Institute in
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Corporate Secretary
Mairobi
Date:
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STATEMENT OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 29 of schedule 2 of the Technical and
Vocational Education and Training Act, require the Board members to prepare financial statements in
respect of Ziwa Technical Training Institute which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and the
operating results of the college at the end of the financial year. The Board members are also required to
ensure that the college keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy its
financial position and to safeguard the assets of the college.

The Board members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the ZIWA TTI financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of ZIWA TTI for and as at the end of the
financial year ended on June 30, 2019. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management arrangements and ensuring that this continue to be effective throughout the reporting period:
(ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the college; (iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from
material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) Safeguarding the assets of ZIWA TTL, (v)
Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) Making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board members accept responsibility for ZIWA TTI financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by
the PFM Act, 2012 and TVET Act 2013. The Board members are of the opinion that ZIWA TTI financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of ZIWA TTI transactions during the financial year ended
June 30, 2019, and of ZIWA TTT's financial position as at that date. The Board members further confirm the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for ZIWA TTI, which have been relied upon in the
preparation of ZIWA TTI financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial
control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board members to indicate that ZIWA TTI will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The ZIWA TTI financial statements were approved by the Board on _ < K o X ‘"‘ ““and signed on its
behalf by: :
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.C. Box 30084-00100
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Telephone: +254-(20) 3214000
E-mail: info[@oagkenya.go.ke
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING
INSTITUTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2020

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ziwa Technical Training
Institute set out on pages 1 to 37, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 30 June, 2020, and the statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Ziwa Technical Training Institute as at 30 June,
2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis)
and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Technical and
Vocational Education and Training Act, 2013.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Inaccuracies in Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects negative cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.20,587,435 which includes a negative amount of Kshs.21,662,419
current account held in Cooperative Bank as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial
statements. Review of the bank reconciliation statement revealed receipts in the bank
statement not yet reflected in the cash book of Kshs.25,072 428 dating back to March,
2016. Further, analysis of bank reconciliations statement on the development account
held at Cooperative Bank revealed unpresented cheques totalling Kshs.13,027,612
out of which Kshs. 10,844 585 were stale by 30 June, 2020 and had not been reversed.

In addition, review of cash book and bank reconciliation statements revealed an
overdrawn cashbook balance amounting to Kshs.22,297 638 as detailed below:

Balance as per Cash Book
Bank Account (Kshs.)
Cooperative Bank (21,662,419)
Kenya Commercial Bank (447,372)
Mpesa Pay Bill (187,847)
Total (22,297,638)
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In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash
equivalents negative balance of Kshs.20,587 435 as at 30 June, 2020 could not be
confirmed.

2. Unsupported Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.226,577,188 which includes computers balance of Kshs.3,415,613 as disclosed
in note 18 to the financial statements. However, Management did not provide for audit
documents in support of the balance and details about the computers.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.3,415,613 as at 30 June, 2020 could not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position and as disclosed under Note 17 to the financial
statements reflects the current portion of receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs.80,228,867 which were not supported with individual listing and aging analysis
of debtors.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the account’s
receivables balance of Kshs.80,228, 867 could not be confirmed.

4. Unsupported General Expenses - Class Practical

The statements of financial performance for the year ended 30 June, 2020 reflects
general expenses amount of Kshs.33,183,242 which includes class practical
expenses amount of Kshs.4,727,522 out of which Kshs.1,441,550 was not supported
with counter receipt vouchers (S13s) and inspection and acceptance report. Further,
the supplies were not taken on charge in the store records, therefore it was difficult to
verify the receipt, store, and usage of the supplies.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the general expenses
amount of Kshs.33,183,242 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme
Audit Institutions (I1SSAls). | am independent of the Ziwa Technical Training Institute
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya.
| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness

Repart aof the Auditor-General on Ziwa Technical Training Instituie for the year ended 30 June, 2020
2



and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that,
nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources
have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion
Improper Constitution of the Board of Governors

The Institute had a Board of Governors composed of nine members which was
inaugurated on 11 May, 2018. However, the Gazette notice on the appointment of the
Board Members was not provided for audit. Further, none of the Board Members had
financial literacy with the necessary qualifications and expertise in financial
management. This was contrary to Section 1.1(6) of Mwongozo code of Governance
for state corporations. In addition, the Board did not have an annual work plan

In the circumstances, the Board as constituted is illegal and Management of the
Institute breached the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
| comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities
that govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter(s) described in the Basis for Conclusion
on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of
my report, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of Staff Establishment and Human Resource Manual/Policy

During the financial year under review, the Institute operated without an approved staff
establishment and human resource policy. Further, review of the payrolls for the
financial year under review revealed that the Institute did not have job groups or salary
scales. Management did not provide explanations on how they operated without
approved documents and the lack of a career progression guidelines.

It was therefore not possible to determine how controls over recruitment, promotions,
disciplinary matters and remuneration were handled in the absence of the policy
documents.

2. Lack of Internal Audit Function and an Audit Committee of the Board

The Institute did not have an established internal audit function or an Audit Committee
of the Board. This is contrary to Section 73 of the Public Finance Management Act,
2012 which provides for the establishment of an internal audit function and an Audit
Committee of the Board. As such the Institute did not benefit from the assurance and
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advisory services from the internal audit function as well as oversight from the Audit
Committee.

Consequently, oversight over governance risk and control could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence |
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Governors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Institute’s ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Institute or to cease
operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015,

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources
are applied in an effective way.

The Board of Governors is responsible for overseeing the Institute's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISSAls will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

Report of the Auditor-General on Ziwa Technical Training Institute for the year ended 30 June, 2020
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or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.
My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the Institute policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Institute's ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Institute to cease to continue to sustain its services.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Institute to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

e Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA %&ms

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

07 October, 2022
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ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTL

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20™ JUKNE 2020

1. STATEMERNT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Revenue fivm non-ezchange tranmsactions

Transfers from the Mational Government — capiiation 5 16,150,000 38,377,000

Grants from donors and developrosat pariners

Transfers from other levels of government

Pubitic contributions and donations

18,150,000 38,377,000

Eevenus from ezchange transactons

Rendering of services- Fees from students S| 47,986,255 06,760,478

Fee from NYS siudenis - 39,892,500
| Sale of goods i 56,000 45,000

Revenne from exchange tragsactions 48,042,255 £34,704,973

Toisl revenoe 64,102,235 175,081,278

Lapenses :

Use of goods and services 11 | 8159910 6,401,137 .

Employea costs 12 11,491,742 0,920,042

Depreciation and emortization expense 13 6,527,330 6,292 928

Repairs and mainicnance 14 2,181,021 2,200,732

General expenses 15| 33193242 23,775,499

Finance costs - 203,207

Total expenses 61,543,252 48,803,445

Met Surplus for the year 2,545,603 125,278,533

The notes set out on pages 5 ta 37 form an intagrel pert of the Annual Financia! Statements.







ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORET AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20™ JiTNE 2020

1. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Cuarvent peseds

Cash and cash equivalents 16 {20,587,435) (9,306,770}
Current portion of receivables from exchange transactions 17 80,228 E67 106,168, 467
Receivables from non-sxuchangs iransactione - . 15,150,000
Inventories « -
Invesimenis : &
58,641,432 112,609,897
Won-carreni asssiz
Property, plant and equipment 13 226,577,188 148,523 495
Investmenis - -
Investment property - -
Long term receivables from exchangs transactions = =
228,577,188 148,933,425
Total nsseis 288,218,820 260,933,192
Ligbifiies
Carreni liabilities
Trade and other payables from sxchange iransactions - -
Refindabls deposits fom customers 191 460 121,460
Current poriion of borrowings - -
191,460 193,450
Nen-current liabilities
Mon-current emwioyes bencfit obligation = =
Moa-current provisions - -
IO 29 3,808 520 5,150,000
Service concession liability o =
Dieferred tax liabilities - -
3,808,520 5,150,000
Toial lishilities 3,295,030 8,341 480
et asseis 252,218,640 155,581,732
Reservas . 6,721,088 6,781,038
Accumulated surplus 128,827,536 126,278,533
Capital Fund 150,609 956 122,532,111
Toial net assets and labilities 282,218,640 255,591,732
The Financial :
b
Chairman of Conpe
Date..




ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2020

11, STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN NET ASSET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

At July 1, 2013
Revaluation gain -
Fair value adjustment on guoisd invesiments - - -
Total comprebensive incoms . - - =
Capital/Developmeni grangs received during the ysar . - - 59,117,670 59,1 E,mﬂci_
Transfer of depresiation/amortisation fror capital ] ] ] ]

fund to retained earnings
At Juas 30, 201D - - - “_| 59,117,670 n 53,117,670
L

¢

u -
At July 1, 2019 - \ 59,117,670 al@.ﬁﬁé
Revaluation gain - - - . =
Fair value adjustment on quoted investments - - = e
Total comprehensive income - - -
Capiial/Developmeni granis received during the year - . X 32,545,000 32,455,000
Transier of depreciation/amortisation from capital
fund {o reiained sarmings
At June 30, 2020 - - - 91,662,670 91,662,670

TS
R .

Nole:
1. For ilems that are not common in the financial statements, the entity should include a note on what they relate to — either on the
Jace of the statement of changes in equity/net assets or among the notes to the financial statemenis.

2. Prior year adiustments should have an elaborate note describing what the amounts relate to. In such instances a restatement of
the opening balances needs to be done.



IZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITIUTE

AWNNUAL REPORT AND FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2028

' Cash flows from operating aciiviiies

3. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Receipis

Transfers from other Government sniitiss- Capilation gzani 16,150,000 15,150,000
Transfer from Government entiies- Operation grant - 8,077,000
Transfer from National Goverament- Development grant 32,545,000 | 59,117,670
Rendering of services- Fees from students 47,985,255 22,796,657
Rendering of services- Tuition fess from NYS smdenis 25,937,600 7,696,854
Sale of goods 56,000 45,000
Toial Receipiz 122,574,855 112,883,181
Paymuenis -
Compensation of employess 8,155,910 9,920,942
Use of goods and services 11,451, 749 6,401,137
General Expenses 33,183,242 23,775,499
Repair and Maintenance 2,181,021 2,209,732
Finance cost 3 203,207
Remunerstion of Direciors - -
Other payments Z -
Granis and subsidies paid - -
Toial Paymenis 55,015,922 70,372,664 |
Net cash flows from operaiing sciivities 45 67,658,933 42,510,517
Cash flows from invesiing sciivides
Purchase of property, plani, equipment and intangible azseis 77,335,891 42,249,250
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and Equipment - -
Decrease in non-current receivables - -
Increase in investmenis - -
Net cash flows used in investing scidvifies (3,677,938 261,227
Cash flows from financing scivides
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Repayment of borrowings 1,341,480 -
Increase in deposiis -
Net cash flows nsed in fnancing aciviies =
Met incrense/{decrease) in cash and cash eguivalenis {11,019,438) 261,227
Cash snd cash equivalents at ¢ LY - 26 5,567,957 (2,567,907} |
Cash and eash eguivalenis ai 30 JUNE 26 (20,587,433) {9,306,7706)




ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INE

TITUTE

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

i. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMGUNTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
Original Adjustment | Final budget | Actual on Performance
budget  [s comparable | differsnce
- : 1 basis
2013-2028 2015-2020 2018-2020 2015-2070 2015-2020
Revenue Kehs ¥shs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Transfers from other Government | 57,000,000 ] R7,044,000 16,150,000 40,850,000
antities — Capliation grants
Transter fram other Government & & g & &
eniities- Operation grant
Rendering of services- Feas from £1,288,500 o 51,288,500 47,988,255 5,302,245
siudenis
Rendering of services — Fees fram 83,371,950 0| 89,371,950 25,937,600 3,434,350
WY3 studenis
Salz of goods Ly g g 56,000 -56,000
development grants 238,000,000 0| 233.000,000 238,000,000
Total income 435680450 0| 4355680450 0,125,855 B4E,530,595
Expensas
Compensation of employaes 17,256,500 0 17,256,500 11,491,749 5,764,751
Use of Goods and services 854,370 824,370 8,155,910 -7,305,540
Finance costs 0 o o 0 o
Remuneration of diractors ] 0 0 o 0
Repair and Maintenance 7,259,200 ] 7,259,200 2,183,021 5,078,175
Development supenses 238,000,000 G| 232,000,000 238,000,000
General expensas 172,250,380 | 0| 172,250,380 33,183,242 135,107,138 '
Total expenditura 435,660,450 0| 435,660,450 55,015,923 380,644,528
Surplus for the pariod (4] - ] -
Toial eupenditure §35,660. 450 3| 435,68D0450 55,015,922 380,644,528
Surplus far the pasiod o - o - g




ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINATNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 36TH JUNE 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i.

3.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ziwa Technical Traiming Institate is established by and derives its asuthority and
accountability from Tvet Act 2013, The entity is wholly owned by the Govemment of
Kenya and is domiciled in Kenys. The entity’s principal activity is to teach and train in
TVET.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been preparsd on a hisiorical cost basis except for ithe
measwement at re-valued amounis of cerimin items of property, plant and equipment,
markeiable securities snd financial insfroments at fair value, impaired asseis at their
estimated recoverable amounts and achuerially deisrmined lisbilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (TPSAS) allows the uss of sstimates and assumptions. It also
requires management fo exsrcise judgement in the process of applying the enmfily's
accounting policies.

The financial sistements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is
the functional and reporting currency of the enfily.

The financial staiements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, the TVET Act, and Iniernationsl Public Sector &oc_:ammng Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting policiss adopied have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

ADOPTICN OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the
year ended 30 June 2020

- Standard Tmpact

IPSAS 40: Applicable: 1% January 2019

Public Secior | The standard covers public sector combinations arising irom
Combinations | exchenge transactions in which case they are treated similarly with
IFRS 3{applicable o scquisiions osly). Business combinations and
combinations arising from non-exchange iransactions are covered
purely undsr Public Sector combinations as amalgamations.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOF. THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Contlousd)

i, New and amended standards and inferprefations in issue but not yei elieciive in
the year ended 30 June 2020

Standard

| Effective date and impaci:

IPSAS 41
Financial
Insiroments

 pasessment of the smounts, tming and wncerizindy of an eniily’s

Applicable: 1" Jsauary 2022;

The objective of IPSAS 41 is io satablish principles for the financial
reporting of financial asseis snd lisbilities that will present relevant
and useful information to users of financial statements for their

future cash flows.
IPSAS 41 provides users of fnsncial statements with more useful
information than IPEAS 29, by:

» Applying g single claesification end rosasuwremen modst
for financial assets thai considers the charvacteristics of the
agsei’s cash fliows and the objective for winch the asset is
held:

= Applying 2 single forward-looking expected credit loss
model that is applicable to all financial insoumenis subject
to impaivment testing; and

» Applying an improved hedge accounting model that
broadens the hedging srrangements in scope of the guidance.
The mode! develops 2 strong link bsitween an entity’s risk
management soaicgies and the accounting (reatment for
instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

[PEAS 42:
Social Benefits

Applicable: 1" January 2022

The objeciive of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and compersbility of the information that a
reporting entity provides in its financis! siatements about social
benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial
sttements and peners! purpose financial reporis aaseas:

(&) The nsture of such social benefits provided by the entity,

{(b) The key foanumss of the operation of those social benefit
schemes; and

{c) The impact of such socisl benefits provided on ithe entity’s
financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments
o Other IPSAS

Applicable: ist January 2022:
a) Amendmsnts to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related o




ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT ANT: FINAPICIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020

Standard

Effective date and impaei:

resuliing fom
IPSAS 4],
Financial
Instruments

b)

¢}

ihe components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently
omitied when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illnsirative examples
on hedging and credit risk which were inadveriently omitted
when IPSAS 41 was issusd.

Amendments 1o IPSAS 30, o update the guidance for
accounting for financial guarantee contracis which were
inadvertently omitted when IPEAS 41 was issusd.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, 1o updats the guidance on
classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of
accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertenily omitied when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

Improvemsnis
io IPSAS

aj

B)

t)

d)

Applieabls: 1% Japuary 2021:

Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate
references to IPSAS on impaimmeni, in place of the current
references {o other infernationsl and/or national accounting
frameworks

IPSAR 13, Leases and PPBAS 17, Properly, Plami, amd |
Equipment.

Amendments to remove iransitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of
Accrual Basis International Public Secior Accounting
Standards (IPSASs) was approved '
IPSAS 21, Impeirment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26, Impairment of Cash Generating Assets.
Amendments to ensure consistency of impairment guidance
o account for revalue assels in the scope of IPSAS 17,
Property, Plani, and Equipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible
Assefs.

IPSAS 33, First-time Adopdon of Accrual Basis
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).
Amendmenis to the implemeniation guidance on deemed
cost in IPSAS 33 to make it consisteni with the core
principles in the Siandarvd.

Bi. Easly adoption of simndards

The entity did not sarly — adopt any nsw or amended standards in year 2020.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Hevenuwe recogaiiics

i} Revenne Trom aon-exchange (ransaciions

Transfers from other governmeni eniities

Revenues from mnon-sxchangs fansactions with other government entitiss are
measured at fair value and rscognized on obiaining conirol of the assst (cash,
goods, services snd properiy) if ihe iwansfer iz Gee from comditions and it i8
provabie fat the sconomie bensfits or service potentsl related to e asset will
flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in
the siatement of comprehensive income. Development/capital gramis are
recognized in the statement of financial position and reslised in the statement of
comprehensive incorae over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired
nging such funds

ii} Hevenue fvom exchange iransaciions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizss revenue from rendering of services by reference io the stage
of completion when the ouicoms of the fransaction can be esiimated reliably. The
stage of completion is measursd by refersnce io labour hows incuned o date as a
percentage of iotal sstimated labour howrs.

Where the confract cuicoms cannoi be measuwred reliably, revenue is recognized
only io ihe exient that the expensss incurred are recoverable.

Sale af gooils

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transfervad to the buyer, usually on delivery of
the goods and when the amownt of revenue can be measursd reliably and it is
probable that the economic benefiis or service potential associated with the
transaciion will Sow 1o the entity.

Interest income

Inierest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield
discounis estimated fuhiwe cash receipis through the expected life of the financial
asset to thai sssel’s net camying amount The meibod spplies this yield io the
principal outstanding to determins interest income sach period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributicns must be recognized when the sharcholder’s or
the entity’s right to receive payimenis is esiablished.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Hevenue recogaition {Coniinued)
i) HRevenue from exchange transaciions {contlnued)
Hemnial income

Rental income arising from operating leases on imvestment grepeﬂies is accountied
for on a siraight-line basis over the lease terns and included n revenue.

b) Budgei information

)

The original budgst for FY 2019/2020 was approved by the Board on 11" July 2019
Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budgst in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
appropriations are added o the original budgst by the entity upon receiving the
respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

The entity’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the acial income and
expendifure disclosed in the financial siatements. The financial statemenis are prepared
on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the staternent
of financigl performance, whereas the budgst is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts
in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by presemiation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A
comparison of budgst and actual amounis, prepared on a comparable basis to the
approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounis.

In addition io the Basis difference, adjustents fo smounis in the financial siatements
are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budgst.

A siatement o reconcile the actusl amounis on a comparable basis included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actal amounts and the actual as per the
statement of financial performance has been presented on page 6 of these financial
statemnents.

Taxes

Curreni income fax
The entity is exempt from paying taxes as per the First Schedule of the Income Tax Act
Cap 470 Paragraph 10.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

4

. SUMIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

) Tases {contnued)

dy Invesimeni properiy

€}

Invesiment properiies sre measursd initially at cost, including wansaction costs. The
carrying amourit ingindes ihe replacsment cost of componsiis of an sxistng nvestment
property at the time that cosi is incurred if the recognition ciiieria are met and excludes
the costs of day-io-day maintenance of an investment Property.

Investment property acquired through 2 non-sxchange transaction is measured ai its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over & period of years given in
the policy.

Invesiment ropertiss are desscognized either when they have been disposed of oz
when the invesiment properly is permanenily withdrawn from use and no future
economic bemefit or service poiential is expecied Fom its disposal. The difference
between the nat disposs] procseds and fhe carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from invesiment property only when there is a change in use.

Property, plani and equipment

All property, plant and equipment avs stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly atribuiable to the
acquisition of the items. When significant paris of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the snsity recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives snd dsgeeciates them sccowdingly. Likewiss, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in swrplus or defick as incurred. Where an asset is
acquired in & non-exchange wranssction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is
initially measured at its fair value.
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4

)

E)

h)

Leases

Finance leases are lemses that iransfer substentislly the entire risks and bemefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item io the Eniity. Assets held under a finance
lease are capiialized ai the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, si the present value of the fshwe minimum lease paymenis. The
Eniity also recognizes the sssociaied lease Yability st the inception of the lease. The
liability recognized is measured a2 ihe present value of the fiture mimmum iease
paymeints at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, iease paymenis are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as fo achieve & constant rate of inierest on
the remaining balance of fhe liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance cosis
in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is deprecisied over the useful life of the asset.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the
asset by the end of the lsase term, the asset is depreciaied over the shorier of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not fransfer substantially all the risks and benefiis
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Enfity. Operating lease payments are
Tecognized as an operating expense in swplus or deficii on a siraight-line basis over the
lease term.

Iniangibie asseis

Intangible asseis acquired scparaisly are initially recognized at cost. The cost of
intangible asseis acquired in a non-exchange fransaction is their fair value at the date of
the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangibie assets are carmied at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumuiated impairment losses. Intemally generated
iniangible assets, excluding capitalized development cosis, are not capiialized and
expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficii in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred, The useful life of the iniangible asseis is assessed as either finite or indefinite

HResearch and development cosis

The Entity expenses research cosiz as incurred. Development costs on an individual
project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonsirate:
2  The technical feasibility of complsting the asset o that the assel will be
available for use or sale

¥  Iis intention to complete and its ability to use o ssil ihe asset

¥  How the asset will generate fiviure economic benefits or service potential
¥  The availability of resources to complete the asset

»  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initisl recognition of an asset, the asset is carried af cost Isss any accumulated
amortization and accumulsted impairment losses. Amoriization of the asset degins when
development is complsie and the assei is available for nuse. It is amortized over the period
of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for
impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1) Finascisl instrumenis
Flagncial asseis
Inifinl recognifion and mensurement

Financial assets within the scops of IPSAS 29 Finsncial struments: Recognition
and Measivement sis classifisds finsncial asseis at falv valus through suzpius or
deficii, loans and receivabies, held-fo-matwrity investments or available-for-sale
financial asssls, as sppropriate. The Eaniity determines the classification of iis
financial asseis af iniiial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans znd receivsbles are non-derivative financial asssts with fixed or
determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market. Afier initial
measurement, such financial assets are subscguently messuved at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost 1s caloulated
by taking into account any discousnt or premium on acquisition and fees or cosis
that are an inisgral pert of the effective interesi rate. Losses ansing from
impafrment are vscognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-tp-mmainzisy

Non-derivative financial assets with fived or determinable paymenis and fixed
maturities are classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive
intention and ability to hold it 1o maturity. Afier initial measurement, held-to-
matwity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interesi
method, less impairmeni. Amortized cost is calculated by taking imto account any
discount or premiwm on acquisition and fess or costs that are an intsgral part of the
effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus
or defici.

Impaiyment of finnncinl a3seis

The Eniity assesses at sach reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset of an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or entity
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if, there is objeciive
evidence of impairment as a result of one or mors events that has occwred afier the
initial recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated fixtiws cash flows of the financial assei or the eniity of
financial asseis that can be reliably estdmaied. Evidence of impainment may include
the following indicators:
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
iy Finanecial instoumenis {Continued)
Financioi asseis {Coninued)
Trmpairmeeni of fingncind usseis (Condnuzed)

¥ The debiors or entity of debiors ars sxperiencing significant financial difficulty

Default or delinguency in interest or principal payments

The probability that debtors will emer bankrupicy or other financial

reorganization

» Observable dats indicates 8 measurable decyesse in estimated future cash flows
(e.g. changes in syvears or econoinic conditions thai correlats with defaulis)

Fingncinl Habilies

L

Initinl recognidon and measuremend

Financial lighilitiss within the scops of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial
liabiliies ai fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initiaily st fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus direcily atiributable ransaction costs.

Loans and boreowing

After initial recognition, interesi bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective inierest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in surpins or deficit when the liabilities are derscognized as well as
through the effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premivm on
acquisition and fess or cosis that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
i) Invemiories

Inventory is measured at cost upon inital recogaition. To the exient that inventory was
received through non-exchange ansactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost
of the inventory is iis fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for, as follows:

» Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighisd average cost method

% Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a
proporiion of manufachiring overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing cosis

14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coantinued)

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Coaiiauned)

i) Inventories (Continmed)

)

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the fowsr of cost and net realizable
value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no
charge or for & nominal chargs, that class of inventory iz measursd af the lower of cost
and curvent replacement cosi.

Net realizable value is the estimated seiling price in the ordinary course of operations,
less the estimated costs of completion and the ssimated cosis necessary i0 make the
sale exchangs o distrilwton

Inveniories are recognized as an sxpenss when deployed for uiilization or consumpiion
in the ordinary courss of operations of the Entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a pressnt obligation (legal oo
constructive) as a result of a pasi event, i is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic bencfiis or service poiental will be required to setile the
obligation and a reliable estimaie can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expscts some or !l of & provision fo be reimbursed, for example,
under an insursnce coniract, the reimburssment Is recognized as a separate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtuaily certain.

The expense relating fo amy provision is presenied in the statement of Gnancial
performance net of any reimbursement.

Comtingent Hubilies

The Entity does not recognize a contingsnt libility but disclosss details of any
contingsncies in the noiss to the fnancial siaternents, unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefiis or service potential is remote.

Condingeni asssis

The Entity does not recoguize & contingent assef, but discloses details of a possible
asset whose exisience is contingeni on the occurrencs o non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain fishire evenis not wholly within the coafrol of the Esaity in the notes (o
the financial staterments. Contingent assets are asssssed continusily to ensure that
developmenis are appropriatsly reflecisd in the financia! staiements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service poteniial will arise and
the asset’s value car be messursd reiiably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized in the financial sistemenis of the period in which the change ocours.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued}
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCGUNTING POLICIES (Conilaued)

4

k) Nainre and purpose of reserves

B

The Entity creaiss and mainiaing reserves in terme of specific requirements.
Changes I sccounting policies and sstimates
The Entity recogaizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The

effecis of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if reirospective
application is impractical.

m) Employes benefiis

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined
contribution plans are posi-smployment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed
coniributions into a separate entity {2 find), and will have no legal or constructive
obligation io pay fiwther contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assels to pay
all employee benefits reiating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
confributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged
against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefii plans other than defined-
coniribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the
projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum
payments or incrsased future contributions on proporiional basis to &ll participating
employers. The coniributions and lump swm paymenis reduce the post-employment
bemnefit chligation.

Foreign currency ivansaciions

Transactions in foreign cwrencies are imifially accounted for at the ruling rate of
exchangs on the date of the fransaction. Trade creditors or debiors denominaied in
foreign cwrency are reporied at the statement of financial position reporting date by
applying the esxchange raie on that date. Exchsnge differences anising from the
setilement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or
expenses in the period in which they arise.

Horrowing cosiz
Borrowing costs are capiialized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and
equipment.

Such bomowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the assst is being
acquired or construcied and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when
construction of the asset is compleie. Further borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
Py Helaied pariies

4

8}

9

The Enity regards a related pasty 2s s person o 2n entiiy with the ability to exert
control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influsnce over the Entily, or
vice versa. Membere of key management are regarded as related parties aud compriss
the divectors, the CEOfprineiped anvd semior mansgers.

Service concession arrangenenis

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arvangements that it enters inio in
determining the appropriate accounting treafment and discloswre requirements. Tn
particular, whese & privaie parly conitibuiss an assel io the amangement, the Eniity
recognizes that assst when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The
operator must provids togsther with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at
what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life’ asssts, it conircls, through
owmership, beneficial sntidement or otherwise — any significant residual inferest in the
asset at the end of the arrangsment. Any assets so recogaized are measursd at their fair
value. To the exieni ihat an sssst hies besn recognized, the Entity also recognizes
corresponding liability, adjusied by & cash consideration paid or received.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivaients comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shori-term deposits
om call and highly Hepdd investments with an originet mahuwity of three months or bess,
which ars readily converiibie to known amounis of cash and are subject io insignificant
risk of changes ia value. Bank account balances include smounts held at the Ceniral
Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks st the end of the financial year. For
the purposes of these financial sistements, cash and cash equivalents also include shori
term cash imprests and advances 1o authorised public officers and/or institutions which
were not smyeadered or accounted for ai the end of the fnancial year.

Cemparative figures

Where necessary comparative figawres for the previouns financial year have been
amended or reconfigursd to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Subseguent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant
impact on the financis! statements for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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4., SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statemenis in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, sstimates and assuwmptions thet affect the reported
amounts of revenuss, cxpenses, assels and lisbilides, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, ai the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assat or lisbility affected in fishire periods.

Fstimates and assumpiions

The key assumptions concerning the fumure and other key sources of estimation wncsriainty
at the reposting daie, that have s significant risk of causing & matesial adjustment to the
carrying amounis of asssts and liabilides within the nexi financial year, are described
below. The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parvameters available when the
consolidated financial sistements were prepared. However, existing circumsiances and
assumptions about futwe developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the contrel of the Eniity. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1140

Uselul lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of asseis are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use snd value from disposal:

> The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity

» The nature of the asset, its suscepiibility and adapiability to changes in technology and
processes

» The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

¥ Availability of funding to replacs the asset

¥ Changes in the markst in relation io the asset

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management deisrmined an estimaie based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note oo

Provisions are measured at the managemment's best estimate. of the sxpendiiure requived to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted fo present value where the
effect is material.
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5. TRANSFERS FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT MINISTRIES

Unconditional granis

Capitation grant 15,150,600 15,150,000

Operational grant - 8,077,000
Capiistion grani owing - 15,150,000
Grant from CDF 1,000,000

Total governmeni geanis and subsidies 16,150,000 38,377,000

6 (b) TRANSFERSFROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

Ministry of
Education
State

Training 15,180,000 2,545,000 17,725,000
Total 15,180,000 2,545,000 17,725,000

7. GRANTS FROM DONORS AND DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS

Soy CDF renovation granis 1,000,000

Total graunis from development pariners 1,000,000

8. TRANSFERS FROM OTHER LEVELS OF GOVERNMENT

Total Transfers
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9. RENDERING OF SERVICES

Tuition fees from siudents 30,085,384.00 22 796657

Tuition fees from NYS studsais - 1,696,854
Tuition fees from studenis owing 17,900,371 73,963,821
Tuition fees from NYS students owing - 32,202,646
Sale of goods 56,000 45,000
Total revenne from ihie vendering of services | 47,986,255 136,704,978
10. Sale of geods
56,000 45,000
Total revenue from the rendering of services 56,000 45,000
11. USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Catering 7.931,710 6,294 877
Medical expenses 223,200 106,260
Total good and services 8,159,910 6,401,137
i2.

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and wages

10,114,396 9,767,192
Employee related cosis-coniributions o pensions
and medical aids 940,429 299,700
PAYE 347,274 115,881
INHIF 299,700
11,402,099 10,692,238
153. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Property, plant and equipraent 5627330 | 6,292,928
Intangible assets -
Investment property camied af cost +
Total depreciation and amoriization 6,627,330 | 6,292,928
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14, REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Repair and Mainienance expsises 2.181,021 | 2,209,732
Toisl repairs and mainienance 3,181,021 | 2.209,732
15. GENERAIL TXPENSES
S il 139,500.00 7,730
. e 1, 718,560.50 3,085217
Sport expenses - 583,397
Eleciricity, water and conssyvanc i
= = 1,297,157.00 1,372,565
o ’ 10,714,155 10,215,855
Local Travs! and Transport
N o 1,673,472.00 1,268,780
KNEC
Fap 9,571,230.00 4,584,780
Caution expenses 12,000 5,820
Student Usion 27,000.60 57,800
Class Practicat
4,727,522.00 1,864,268
3 o : 885,250.00 170,835
KATTI Subscription : :
 Bus loan repayment 1,341 480 558,452
Activity
1,075,875.00 -
Total general expenses 33,183,242 23,775,499
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At T3t Judy 2019 Bal B/T
4,745,857 6,388,000 31,950 3,018,102 6,501,506 3,465,846 2,700,000 122,072,235 | 148,923,495
Adrlitions
29,454 721 3,416,068 1,540,700 1,813,284 500,000 45 735,340
isposals
,..g__..mmi_uﬂ__.m&_.nﬂzﬂ.ﬁ
At 30" June 2020
44,200,572 5,303,000 31,500 6,435,070 2,042,708 5,279,130 3,200,000 167,807,575
Depreciation amad
_mpairment Y ——— SR S
At Lhaly 2019 5,626,143
236,756.49 1,582,000 13,050 823,571.35 1,948,537.80 G672,227.36 300,000.00 -
Depreciation for the year 6,627,330
e ' 34,012 L,357.000 | 3,008 804,384 2,678,055 es9891 | -
Irnpairent
Agcuepigied -
dieprecistien 2 30 June
202D 3,751 563 3,179,000 17,038 1,627 955 4,626,593 1,332,113
A A4B 010 3,209,000 14,863 4807115 | 315613 3,547,012 2,500,000 167 .307.575
W.1P fncludes: Construction of Library and Tuition block, Renovation of hostel, Construction of Kacheliba TVET, Construction of Kitelalkapel TVET and Construction of Cheranganyi TVET
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1%, ANALYSIS OF EXTERNAL AND DOMESTIC BORROWINGS

External Borrowiuss 1
Domestic i
Kenya Shilling loan from MIC bank L 5,150,000
Toisl balance st end of the vear ' | 5,150,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Comiinued)

20. BREAKDOWN OF LONG AND SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Long term bomrowings 5,150,000
Toial 5,150,000

i. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The entity’s activities expose it to 2 varisty of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign cuemcy. The company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on unprediciability of changes in the business eavironment and seeks 0
minimise the poiential adverss effect of such risks on its performance by sefting accepiable
levels of risk. The company doss not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to cusiomers with an established credit history.

The eatity’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure 1o credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounis in fill when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, anli
deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individuat risk Hwits are set bassd on fmternal or
external assessment in sccordance with liznits set by the directors. The amounts prew;ted in
the statement of financial position are net of allowsnces for doubifiil receivabies, esunlated
by the company’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment,

The carrying smount of finsncial assets. recorded in the financisl stalements representing
the entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking sccount of the value of any
collateral obtained is made up as foliows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

Ezceivables fom

exchangs wansactions .
Bank balances :
Toial

RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

; Curyent recelvablas
Transfers from govt. entities 15,150,000
Total current receivabies 15,156,000

235, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
{iy  Credit risk {continued)

The customers wnder the fully performing category are paying their debis as they continue
irading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is miniinal and the allowance for
uncollectible smounis thet the company has recogoised in the financial sialemenis is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The board of direciors ssts the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspscts of credit risk management are operated.

(i) Liguidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liguidity risk management rests with the entify’s directors, who
have built an appropriate liguidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity’s short, medivm 2nd long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The

entity managss liguidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
thows
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Countinued)

27

(iii) Market risk

(i)

The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the entity on an ongoing basis, svaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
internal accounting and operations] controls.

Market risk is the sisk avising from changes ia market pricss, such as inisvest rale, equity
prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income or the value of ifs
holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management i3 {0 manage
and control market risk exposures within accepiable paramsters, while optimising the
reurn. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk
Management Commitics.

The company’s Finance Departiment iz responsible for the —:iem@lopmﬁttr of detailed risk
management policies {subject to review and approval Dy Audlt and Risk Management
Commmittee) and for the day to day implementation of those palicies.

There has been no change to the entity’s exposure fo markei risks or the manner in which it
imanages and measures the risk.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
b} Intersst rats risk{continued)

Sensttivity analysis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a
sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impaci on profit or Joss of defined
rate shifts. The sensitivity analysis for inierest rate risk assumes thai all other
variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as the prior year.
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tf) Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the Board’s ability to
continue as 8 going concem. The eatity capital struciure comprisss of the following funds:

‘Retzined eamings e 50.080,776.86 | 131,700,456
Capital reserve 7,580,600

Total funds 67,570,777 131,700,466
Total borrowings 32,476,530 14,165,295
Less: cash and bank balances (47,142 ,897) 3,051,699
Met debt/{sxcess cash and cash equivalents) 14,666,367 16,663,596
Gearing . 23% 8.05%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueid)

28. RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Mature of relaied party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entify include those parties who have ability to exercise
conirol or exercise significant influence over ifs operating and fimancial decisions. Related
parties include management personnel, their associaies and cloge family members.

Goverament of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal sharsholder of the entify, holding 100% of the entily s E,ql.!.i.t}r
interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarentess to all long-term lenders of the entity,
both domestic and external. Other related parties includs:

i) The Netional Government;
ii) The Parent Minisiry;

ili)  Key management;

iv) Board of directors;

Transactions with related parties
a) Grants from the Government
(Grants from National Governmeni 25,315,000 | 27,927,000
Grants from CDF 1,000,000
| Toial 26,315,000 | 27,927,000 |
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30. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The entity is or a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency undsy the Ministry of Education. Iis
ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

31. FINANCE COSTS

Bomrowings (amortized cost)*

Finance leases {(amortized cost)
Unwinding of discount

Bank Charges

Interest on loans From commercial hanke
Tetal finance cosis

- 203,207

- 203,267
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Z. APPENDICES
APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UF OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external suditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as
shown below with the sssociated time frame within which we expect the issues io be resolved, -

Referpnee Focal Polnt Stntue: Timeirame:
Mo om the  Fusue / peism 10 : m- v /(PG dase
external . Manspement ressive the {2 5 i witen v
cxterna Obseivaticns i z B :
andit  from-Audippy CORREH tssase (Nawe Resolvey — SWPect tie
Kepert i isxtge goi By
. designaiionn; resofved)

This is the first tims tha collsge is being sudited by Office of the Auditor Genzrat and therefore

theze areng 1*3;3&:&53:41%@* ous,
."-—-.—h—-—t--'-'j |3 S 4 L TR SOy ' i
IﬂfthﬁE[Efd : ] ik et - Al i3
S i o
e :
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20, INVESTMENTS
32. BORROWINGS
T e e BT TN
: i : . 1201920201 2019
-_.. .'.' l.J _'_ '. c- 'l-":H,t."'l' '. "':.:.':'. ..-: e =“__‘-,‘:.:-' e R e b ) s e A 4 .'.:'. B e -_'%;—- ety .m.
Balance at beginning of the period = -
External borrowings during the year - | 5,150,000
Domestic borrowings during the year = 5
Repayments of external borrowings during the year = i

Repayments of domestics borrowings during the year

Balance at end of the period

- | 5,150,000

APPENDIX 11: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Projects implemented by Ziwa Technical Training Institute Funded by development parmers

| Project | Project | Demor | Peried/ | Domer | Separate | Consolidated
fitla - Mpmber LEE duration | commitment in these
ed | statements
| | (eso)
I | Administration Ziwa TTI 1 vear YES
and ICT cenire
y Kitelakapel Miniziry of 1 year NO YES
TTi Education
MOE/
Kapenguria
CDF
3 Cherangany Ministry of I year NO YES
TTI Educstion
MOE/
Kapenguria
CDF
4 | Kacheliba TVC MOE/CDF 1 year NO YES
5 Mechanical MOE/ Ziwa 1 year NO YES
Engineering TT1
Workshop
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Status of Projecis completion

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34441375 | 5,151,428 34,441,375
ICT Centre

2 | Mechanical 3,153,081 | 2,872223 160% | 3,153,081 MOE
Engineering
Worleshon

3 |Libraryand | 17,721,980 | 17,721,980 10096 | 17,721,980 MOE
Tuition
Block

4 | Renovation 9,063,620 100% | 9,063,680 ZIWATTI
Works and
Pastitioning [
, Toilets ,
Fencing,

Associated
civil works
in Male
hostel
5 | Kitelakapel 53,455,516 1008 | 53,455,516 MOE /CDF

6 | Cherangany | 52,075,773 100% | 52,075,773 MOE /CDF

33



ZIWA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2020
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPENDIX [1i: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY
NAME: Ziwa Technical Training Institute
Breal down of Transfers from the Siate Department of Vocational and Technical Training
FY 20192030
Capitation
a. | Granis
Bank Statement Date Amcunt {KShs) | The FY to which the
amounts relate
18" October 2019 7,335,000 | 2019-2020
28" April 2020 1,000,000 | 2019-2020
7% May 2020 7,845,000 | 2019-2020
Toial 16,180,000
Mational Youth
Service students
b. | fees
3™ Dec 2019 8,261,946 | 2018-2019
7" May 2020 7,845,000 | 2018-2019
10" May 2020 25,937,600 | 2018-2019
Development
c. | Grants
Eank Statement Date Amount {I{shs)
The FY the amounts relate
8" huly 2019 2,545,000 | 20192028
Total 2,545,000

The above amounts have been communicaied to and reconciled with the pareni Ministry

Finance Officer
Ziwa Technical Training Institute

ey

S o

Sign

3q

Head of Accounting Unit

MOE

Sigilmmmnmmnenaes
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APPENDIX I'V: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Whers

e o the Recorded/recogni
.._ﬂ-..nw!un.ﬂ-.:.mq-ﬁ ﬂra Dhate received N-._Hu
Tumdls Dlavbure: Total Statement of

a3 per bank | Recurreat/Develo Adnonnt - IFimaneizl Total Transfers

statenent | pmenit/Dthers KIES Performance | Copital fand | Others | | Receivables | during the Year

Minisiry of i
Education 18" Oct 2019 Recurrent | 7,335,000 7,335,000 7,335,000
National Youth
Service 23" Dec 2019 Recurrent | 8,261,946 8,261,946 8,261,946
Minisiry of
Education 28" April 2020 recurrent | 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Mational Youth
Service 7% May 2020 Recurrent | 7,845,000 7,845,000 7,845,000
Ministry of
Education 3" July 2020 Recuorrent | 7,590,000 7,590,000 7,590,000
_.ir_mm.@ of
Education 10" July 2019 Recurrent | 15,150,000 15,150,000 15,150,000
National Youth
Service 10" June 2020 Recurrent | 25,937,600 25,937,600 25,937,600
Ministry of - .
Education 8" July 2020 Development | 2,545,000 B 2,545000| , 2,545,000
Total 75,664,546 31,075,000 | 2545000 | 1,000,000 42,044,546 75,664,546
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